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          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Good morning. My

          3  name is Gifford Miller, and I am the Chair of this

          4  State and Federal Legislation Committee, and welcome

          5  to today's Committee hearing.

          6                 Today we will consider a variety of

          7  Home Rule Messages. The Preconsidered SLR and SLR 21

          8  involve the reconveyance of a single property for

          9  which taxes were not paid but where the

         10  circumstances were such that the former owner may be

         11  entitled to recoup the property after paying all

         12  taxes and penalties.

         13                 SLR 70 is another similar

         14  reconveyance of property. Does the Mayor have any

         15  objections to these in rems?

         16                 MAYOR'S REPRESENTATIVE:

         17  (Unidentified) No the Mayor has no objection.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay, great.

         19                 SLR 57 would establish requirements

         20  for the size of the Detective Bureau relative to the

         21  size of the entire police force, as well a

         22  reasonable number of first and second grade

         23  detective positions within the Bureau.

         24                 We will also consider SLR 82, which

         25  would provide special officers parking control
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          2  specialists, school safety agents, campus peace

          3  officers and New York City Taxi and Limousine

          4  inspectors with the performance of duty disability

          5  retirement allowance benefits.

          6                 Lastly, we will consider SLR 91,

          7  which would create a 25-year retirement plan

          8  regardless of age for those same titles.

          9                 We can take the Administration's

         10  testimony and all of the items first, and then hear

         11  from those who are interested in testifying on the

         12  SLRs as well. Okay? Is there anyone from the

         13  Administration who wants to come forward and tell us

         14  how they feel today?

         15                 Good morning. Please identify

         16  yourselves for the record and tell us how you feel.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: Good

         18  morning. Felix Lamb, Deputy Commissioner of

         19  Management and Budget for the NYPD.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BEIRNE: I am

         21  Deputy Commissioner for Labor Relations, NYPD.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: What is your

         23  name?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BEIRNE: John

         25  Beirne.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: My name is James

          3  Hanley, I am the Commissioner of Labor Relations for

          4  the City of New York.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Gentlemen, in

          6  whatever order you would prefer.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: Good

          8  morning. With regards to New York State Senate Bill

          9  2765, which would mandate the appointment of

         10  specific numbers of detectives in first and second

         11  grades, the Police Department strongly opposed the

         12  bill, since it represents an unwarranted intrusion

         13  into the management of the NYPD and would have a

         14  significant negative impact for the City.

         15                 The bill, as you know, would mandate

         16  that in addition to that 15 percent of the entire

         17  force be in the rank of detective, either first,

         18  second or third. The bill also goes further to

         19  mandate that 10 percent would be made first grade

         20  detectives, 25 percent would be made second grade,

         21  with the remaining 65 percent remaining in the third

         22  grade title.

         23                 To give you a range as to what the

         24  potential fiscal impact this would have on the City,

         25  if all of these promotions were made next fiscal
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          2  year, we would be discussing a total fiscal impact

          3  of about $20 million.

          4                 If, however, in a better case

          5  scenario, if all of these promotions were phased

          6  over a five-year period, it would have an $11.7

          7  million impact on the NYPD's budget.

          8                 In addition to that, you should also

          9  keep in mind that with regards to the percentages of

         10  first and seconds, the 10 and 25 percent that the

         11  bill seeks to mandate, the Department has, since

         12  1991, never reached those levels. So, the bill

         13  doesn't attempt to go back in time and readjust what

         14  once was the case.

         15                 Since 1991 on average the Department

         16  had approximately between two and three percent in

         17  the rank of first grade, and since 1991, the

         18  Department had on average approximately 10 percent

         19  of its force in the rank of second grade.

         20                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: We, too, are

         21  opposed to the bill, for all the reasons as

         22  indicated by Commissioner Lam. It is an unwarranted

         23  intrusion into the ability of the Commissioner to

         24  designate his or her people, and it is terribly

         25  costly and we are opposed to the bill.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can you tell us

          3  what are the percentages currently; and in total,

          4  and then by grade?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: Currently we

          6  have, out of a force, there is 47,710 officers of

          7  all ranks, we have as of April 30th 7,024

          8  detectives.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So that is about?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: It's about

         11  17 percent of the force are detectives.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right. So that

         13  meets the requirements of this bill?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: It more than

         15  meets the requirements of the bill, because the bill

         16  mandates a minimum threshold of 15 percent, so we

         17  are above that now.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So there would be

         19  no fiscal impact to that part of the bill?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: That's

         21  right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Right.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: The fiscal

         24  impact resides mostly on the requirement of making

         25  first grades and second grades.
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          2                 Out of the 7,024 detectives that the

          3  Department has, 183 are first grade detectives,

          4  which is 2.6 percent, and of the 7,024, and 697 are

          5  second grade detectives which represents 9.9 percent

          6  of the 7,024. The balance of course --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Then why are

          8  those numbers so small?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: The first

         10  and second grades are discretion promotional ranks,

         11  and the Department has maintained these percentages

         12  for at least ten years.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So you are saying

         14  in 1991 it was exactly the same percentage of first

         15  grade?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: I will give

         17  you the exact numbers if you would like.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Sure.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: In Fiscal

         20  Year 1991 the Police Department, the entire force,

         21  we had 27,565 uniformed members of the service. We

         22  had, out of that number we had 3,915 detectives,

         23  which represents approximately 14 percent. And

         24  within all of the ranks of detectives, we had first

         25  grade 104, which is 2.6 percent, and we had 419
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          2  second grade detectives which represents 10.7

          3  percent. And, so you can see that the percentages

          4  today almost mirror what the percentages were in

          5  1991, and, in fact, if you went every single year

          6  between then and now, they are approximately the

          7  same.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Why is it that

          9  there are so few first grade detectives? You don't

         10  have a lot of good detectives?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAM: To be

         12  promoted to first and second is a discretionary,

         13  it's a discretionary promotion made by the Police

         14  Commissioner. I don't know what else to say beyond

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         17                 Council Member Provenzano, any

         18  questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

         21  being here, Council Member Provenzano.

         22                 Okay, do you want to testify on the

         23  next bill?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: If they don't, I

         25  will.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Great.

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: As to the other

          4  two bills, certainly SLR 82, which is a bill for

          5  hepatitis, AIDS and tuberculosis, for certain

          6  members of employees represented by Local 237,

          7  simply put, the bill attempts to provide greater

          8  accidental disability retirement allowances for

          9  these additional employees.

         10                 Currently these employees are not

         11  subject to rigorous physical examinations when they

         12  first joined the Department, and to then make a

         13  determination, after no pre-employment minimal

         14  requirements or exams, to then make a determination

         15  later on I think is faulty at best.

         16                 The bill inappropriately creates a

         17  presumption which is not based on science or facts,

         18  but an employee who contracts TB, HIV or hepatitis,

         19  did so in the performance of his or her duty, the

         20  employee has only to prove that he or she may have

         21  been exposed to the body fluid of a person under his

         22  or her care. It will be virtually impossible for the

         23  City of New York to disprove that presumption, and

         24  assert that the condition was not contracted in the

         25  line of duty.
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          2                 This is particularly true in the case

          3  of HIV, where it would be illegal for the employee

          4  to test for the presence of the disease prior to the

          5  hiring of the employee.

          6                 The City of New York also objects to

          7  the enhanced disability benefits granted to this new

          8  group of employees. This provision would grant such

          9  employees a greater disability pension and does not

         10  require that the disability injury be the result of

         11  an accident.

         12                 For example, under current law, a

         13  police officer who strains his back while changing a

         14  tire of his or her police vehicle would not be

         15  granted accidental disability retirement because

         16  this would not be considered an accident. Under this

         17  bill, a special officer, or a parking specialist,

         18  injured under similar circumstances, would be

         19  entitled to a 75 percent tax-free pension, which

         20  does not exist right now for any of these employees.

         21  For all of these reasons, we would urge you to

         22  please not approve the bill.

         23                 As to SLR 81, which requires for an

         24  enhanced pension of age 55 or upon attaining age 55

         25  after 25 years of service, time and again we have
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          2  with this union, Local 237, and other civilian

          3  unions, we have agreed to support legislation if the

          4  bill itself, there is an agreement between the City

          5  of New York and employee organization, as to the

          6  design of the enhancement, the enhanced pension, and

          7  as to what the cost is, and to how that cost is

          8  going to be paid by the employee. We have done that

          9  time and again.

         10                 There is a moratorium, as you know,

         11  on bargaining on pensions, so we have not done that.

         12  We have, in fact, bargained on support for certain

         13  bills. We have done that with this group, and yet

         14  the union as sought fit, after having agreed upon

         15  the design and achieved the support from the City,

         16  and having enhanced the benefit once, the union I

         17  guess has decided to introduce a bill to circumvent

         18  that process that has been agreed to and it has been

         19  pretty much tried and true. Indeed in this round of

         20  bargaining we have offered the union the same

         21  process to enhance this very same pension that we

         22  are talking about now, and we have agreed to do that

         23  with several other groups that we have already

         24  settled with.

         25                 So, we have agreed to do that, we
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          2  will do it, but to engage in the end run without an

          3  agreement as to design or to cost or to how that

          4  cost is going to be borne, frankly, is a

          5  circumvention of the process, and a disservice to

          6  the process and a disservice to all of those other

          7  unions that have agreed to it across the table, as

          8  this union has in the past.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: I have nothing

         11  further.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

         13  Provenzano?

         14                 Okay, we will hear from the other

         15  side, as well.

         16                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         18                 First we are going to call Thomas

         19  Scotto, President of the New York City Detectives

         20  Endowment Association.

         21                 President Scotto, if you would

         22  identify yourself for the record and tell us how you

         23  feel?

         24                 MR. SCOTTO: Yes. I am Tom Scotto,

         25  President of the Detectives Endowment Association.
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          2  Seated with me is Vice President Jack Heeley.

          3                 First and foremost, I think it is

          4  very important that I just clarify a comment that

          5  was made by the Commissioner that this is an

          6  unwarranted intrusion on the Police Commissioner. I

          7  want to make it very clear, it is not the intent of

          8  this organization, nor the language of this bill, to

          9  intrude upon the Police Commissioner's authority.

         10  There is nothing in this language that would do so,

         11  and it is not the intent of this organization to do

         12  so.

         13                 The second part is merely, this is

         14  basically a restoration back to where we were, and

         15  we are begging that the City Council see that and

         16  the language that is before you.

         17                 For instance, if you take a peak at

         18  the sample that I just provided for you, you would

         19  see back in 1972, and it is strange because that is

         20  almost the exact number that Commissioner Lam

         21  testified in 1991, I took not of his number, he said

         22  back in 1991, we had 27,565 members of the Police

         23  Department, of which approximately 3,915 were

         24  detectives, which were 14 percent of which 104 were

         25  first graders, and which 419 were second graders.
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          2  Now, I beg you to look at the model that I have on

          3  the bottom. You will see back in 1972 we had 2,787

          4  detectives, of which 832 of the second grade, which

          5  was 29 percent, and 228 which were first graders

          6  which was eight percent for a total of approximately

          7  37 percent of all detectives of either first or

          8  second grade.

          9                 Subsequent to that time we went to a

         10  fiscal crisis in which the promotions of first and

         11  second grade were tremendously reduced. And I think

         12  it is very important for the City Council to

         13  understand the avenues of promotion that are

         14  available in the New York City Police Department.

         15  When you enter the New York City Police Department,

         16  you only have two, two avenues of advancement, one

         17  is by civil service test. You take a test for

         18  sergeant, lieutenant or captain, and beyond that it

         19  is discretionary, the Police Commissioner has the

         20  right to promote above the rank of detective. And

         21  the second only avenue of advancement is that

         22  through outstanding performance, and if you are an

         23  outstanding police officer, the Police Commissioner

         24  has the discretion of promoting you to the rank of

         25  detective, third grade. And a third grader receives
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          2  half the salary between a patrolman and a sergeant.

          3  Ultimately, if you are an outstanding third grade

          4  detective, the other avenue of advancement is you

          5  become a second grade detective which gives you the

          6  same exact salary as a sergeant, and then if you are

          7  outstanding within the group of second graders, you

          8  can advance to the top level of first grade

          9  detective, which is the same salary as a lieutenant.

         10                 So, the outstanding performers of

         11  this Police Department, not through civil service,

         12  truly by outstanding performance, lies within the

         13  avenue of advancement through the ranks of

         14  detective.

         15                 Now, what has happened over the

         16  years, from 1972 to now, the Police Department, the

         17  rank of detective has accelerated from 2,787

         18  detectives to nearly 7,066 that we have today. What

         19  the Department has done since we advanced the number

         20  of detectives, they made us pay a price, and we will

         21  give you the number of third grade detectives, but

         22  we are going to diminish basically, diminish the

         23  avenue advancement through the ranks of second and

         24  first grade.

         25                 Five years ago this bill was before
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          2  this City Council, and the City Council in its

          3  wisdom granted this bill to us. This bill went all

          4  the way up to the Governor's desk, and the

          5  Governor's staff intervened on our behalf and said,

          6  you know, there is a tremendous amount of merit to

          7  what this union is saying. You have really, really

          8  evaporated the avenues of promotion for detectives.

          9  And at that time we only had about 4,500

         10  detectives.  And they said, we think you should sit

         11  down and have a compromise and come to a solution on

         12  the amount of detectives.

         13                 Hence, five years ago we agreed with

         14  the City for a program to additional quotas, and the

         15  quotas was based upon the number of police officers

         16  that were hired at that time, versus the percentage

         17  of detectives, and we calculated approximately 4,900

         18  detectives.

         19                 And, foolish, on behalf of the

         20  detectives part, I might add, and I take full blame

         21  for that, is we agreed that should the Department

         22  diminish in its size and the amount of detectives

         23  diminish in its size, we would also agree that the

         24  percentages of second and first graders should also

         25  be diminished.
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          2                 Well, let the facts speak for

          3  themselves, we went from 4,900 detectives to

          4  approximately 7,100 detectives. In my efforts to ask

          5  the Police Department to be fair with us, as we were

          6  with them, that if the numbers went down in

          7  proportion, we agreed to diminish the number of

          8  second and first. When it went above 4,900, I had

          9  written I think four letters to then Commissioner

         10  Safir requesting consideration that the quotas be in

         11  proportion to the number of detectives, and his

         12  response, in essence, was there is an agreement that

         13  has been cut, there is nothing in that agreement

         14  that says if we go above 4,900 the proportion should

         15  go above 4,900, and he has totally and completely

         16  ignored that for the last three years. So, hence,

         17  the percentage of seconds and firsts are even more

         18  narrow now than they were five years ago, and what

         19  happens? The avenue of frustration where outstanding

         20  detectives get recommended for 10, 15 years on this

         21  Police Department, and there is no room for

         22  promotion. And, unfortunately for us, the way the

         23  Department is, there is a very limited number of

         24  promotions available, and it takes quite a bit of

         25  skill, even though you are recommended by your
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          2  commanding officers, to be advanced to the ranks of

          3  seconds and firsts.

          4                 So, the bill that is before you is

          5  one of equity and fairness. What you are saying, in

          6  essence, that there is a large number of detectives

          7  in the Police Department, that a percentage of those

          8  detectives should be stored, the promotional process

          9  should be restored back to the 1972 level, and in

         10  fact we have even made it smaller than it is, and

         11  you correctly, Mr. Chair, noted the fact that the

         12  bill even makes it less than what it is today, they

         13  are about 17.5 percent, we tried to make it fair, we

         14  brought it down to approximately 15 percent and all

         15  during this whole process it is totally

         16  discretionary to the Police Commissioner, as to whom

         17  he or she chooses to advance in the second and first

         18  grade, and this union has absolutely no desire in

         19  attempting to infringe upon his authority to do so.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you for

         21  your testimony.

         22                 Let me just note, it is my

         23  understanding from staff that you have indicated to

         24  staff that the bill that we are discussing here

         25  says, an immediate implementation of these
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          2  guidelines, but that you have committed the union to

          3  supporting a phase-in; is that correct?

          4                 MR. SCOTTO: That's correct. I was

          5  just going to get to that, Mr. Chair.

          6                 In having some discussion on the

          7  matter, had I realized that initially, I would have

          8  been more than glad to include it in the language,

          9  but it should be known that the Department -- again,

         10  once again, in cooperation with the Police

         11  Department, the union is saying that it should be a

         12  three-year, equal proportions on a monthly basis or

         13  quarterly basis over a three-year span of time would

         14  be fair enough both for the union and the City of

         15  New York.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Are there any

         17  other questions from my colleagues?

         18                 Okay.

         19                 MR. SCOTTO: Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

         21                 Next to testify we have Gregory

         22  Floyd, and Patricia Stricker of Teamsters Local 237.

         23                 Please identify yourselves for the

         24  record and tell us how you feel.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Gregory Floyd, Director of
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          2  the Citywide Division of Local 237.

          3                 MS. STRIKER: Pat Striker, Local 237

          4  Teamsters. I am the Director of Political Action and

          5  Legislation, and on my left is Jonathan Schwartz,

          6  and on my right is Vincent Montalbano, who

          7  represents us at the City Council.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Do you have any

          9  remarks you want to make? Go ahead and tell us how

         10  you feel about the bill.

         11                 MS. STRIKER: Okay. This legislation,

         12  talking now about the Marchi/Abbate bill, is in

         13  effect for other groups of people from the ranks in

         14  New York City employees, that is the Fire Department

         15  and the Police Department and in the State of New

         16  York I believe the Sheriff's, under Sheriff's,

         17  Correction Officers have this benefit, and this

         18  benefit would give a three-quarter disability

         19  pension if one contracts hepatitis, AIDS or TB, and

         20  in the case of HIV, one would have to have

         21  documentation that on the job you came in contact

         22  with someone's bodily fluid or transported someone

         23  or had close contact.

         24                 Now, unlike the other people I have

         25  just mentioned, perhaps the Corrections is
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          2  different, our people are unarmed in terms of a

          3  firearm, so there are many, many altercations

          4  involving these side job titles, and because our

          5  people are not armed they come into much closer

          6  physical contact than others, because they only have

          7  their bodies and wits to defend themselves and

          8  defend others in their line of duty.

          9                 In addition, this bill has a

         10  three-quarter disability for accidents on the job,

         11  so that is a bill, as I said, that applies to many

         12  others.

         13                 This bill received a Home Rule

         14  Message here a year ago, and it did pass the

         15  Assembly, and in the final moments of the session in

         16  the Senate, and Joe Bruno does leave on time, our

         17  bill fell off the table in the last rules report. It

         18  was on the draft and then it didn't come out. So, I

         19  have been promised, the union has been promised by

         20  the Senate that this bill will go this year, and in

         21  the Assembly Ms. Abbate and the leadership of the

         22  Assembly has said this bill will go this year,

         23  again, because it did go last year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Can you tell us

         25  how many people are in these titles that are
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          2  affected by this?

          3                 MS. STRICKER: We have 5,500, but Mr.

          4  Floyd is the Director of that Division, and he has

          5  better numbers than I do.

          6                 Go ahead, Greg.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you, Councilman.

          8                 We have approximately 5,500 members

          9  in these titles, these five job titles in total, so

         10  we are not talking about a huge amount of members.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And all the

         12  people that we are talking about here are peace

         13  officers? Maybe there has been a little bit of

         14  confusion, the parking control specialists, for

         15  example, these are not the people that are out there

         16  as a general rule writing tickets for expired

         17  parking meters, these are people who are actual

         18  peace officers who engage in arresting members of

         19  the public who are engaging in wrongdoing; is that

         20  correct?

         21                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct.

         22                 These members in the Parking Control

         23  Bureau, they do meter checks and they arrest people

         24  who tamper with the meters, and they do sting

         25  operations in addition to policing the municipal
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          2  parking lots for the violations.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And that is a

          4  relatively small title. How many people are in that

          5  title?

          6                 MR. FLOYD: There are approximately 40

          7  people in that title currently.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          9                 And just so that I understand, what

         10  we are talking about here is extending to peace

         11  officers the same exact benefits as are already

         12  received by public safety, other public safety

         13  officers who are, you know, the Police Department,

         14  the Fire Department, et cetera, right?

         15                 MR. FLOYD: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So, we can't

         17  really, we couldn't change the benefit that is

         18  associated with that, and we heard the Commissioner

         19  previously testify, he is saying that this actually

         20  gives more benefits; is that it? Or just the same

         21  benefits as are received by others in similar job

         22  titles, albeit that they have guns instead of just

         23  peace officer status; is that correct?

         24                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct. This is

         25  the same benefit.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

          3                 Are there other questions?

          4                 Yes, Council Member Provenzano.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6                 Fifty-five hundred members you said

          7  you have, right?

          8                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          9                 MS. STRICKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: What

         11  initiated this bill? I mean, you had people that

         12  have had this problem? How many people do you

         13  anticipate having this problem? I guess, you know, I

         14  look at the kinds of jobs that are being done by the

         15  people we want to include, and the question pops up,

         16  how close are these people to actually contracting

         17  these kinds of diseases in what they do. You know, I

         18  do put Fire Department and Police Department,

         19  Correction Sheriffs, and I believe EMS also has

         20  this, don't they?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes, they do.

         22                 MS. STRICKER: Yes, they have the

         23  benefit.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, if you

         25  could just kind of clarify this for me a little bit.
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: Well, we have a group of

          3  850 peace officers that work in the hospital,

          4  hospital policing, you know, working in a hospital

          5  environment, you can contract anything that comes in

          6  the hospital, so that's a group of 850.

          7                 We also have a group of school safety

          8  agents that work around the schools, and for them

          9  the benefit of three-quarters pay in the line of

         10  duty for getting hurt, because they get hurt on a

         11  regular basis trying to keep our schools safe and

         12  dealing with the children, and the children aren't

         13  often arrested, but, however, the agent is penalized

         14  because the agent is hurt. So, we are not looking to

         15  arrest children, we are looking to keep those

         16  schools safe, but there is a price that the agents

         17  pay because some of them can no longer work, and

         18  they get maybe one-quarter disability pay for the

         19  rest of their lives.

         20                 And also, we have juvenile justice

         21  officers, and they are in close proximity, because

         22  they work in Spofford and other juvenile detention

         23  centers, and we also have a group of peace officers

         24  that work for the Health Department and they are

         25  inside the health facilities. So, we do have groups
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          2  of peace officers that do come in close contact with

          3  some communicable diseases.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And we are

          5  specifically talking about TB, hepatitis, HIV?

          6                 MS. STRICKER: That's only one part of

          7  the bill. The bill has two parts. The first part is

          8  that, and then there is the three-quarter disability

          9  injury in the line of duty, but based on the fiscal

         10  note there are five to ten incidents of this kind a

         11  year, so it would not be an overwhelming number,

         12  between five and ten.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That's the

         14  stats for -- currently those are the stats?

         15                 MS. STRICKER: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, so

         17  you say the other part of the bill, so injured in

         18  the line of duty, give me a for instance.

         19                 MS. STRICKER: People have been

         20  assaulted where they have severe injuries, and

         21  unable to work in some instances because the injury

         22  is so bad. Particularly one man with whom I spoke on

         23  the phone who was a hospital police officer, had two

         24  surgeries, and he cannot return to work.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, would
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          2  this apply to anybody that is on the job, someone

          3  that is on the job two, three years? Or is there a

          4  point at which after that it applies to you, or it

          5  applies to anybody? If on the job you started last

          6  week, would that apply to that person also?

          7                 MS. STRICKER: In theory, yes. In

          8  theory, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Do we have

         10  this for all these others?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: I'm sorry?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Our other

         13  uniformed forces, do we have the three-quarter pay

         14  for injured in the line of duty? We have it for all

         15  of them?

         16                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         18                 MR. FLOYD: I just want to add that we

         19  do have the Taxi and Limousine inspectors, and they

         20  suffer injuries because of the car stops for the

         21  gypsy cabs and other violators out there running

         22  around the streets with no licenses on cabs and they

         23  do a lot of towing work, so they are injured quite

         24  frequently also.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I can

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  imagine they would be.

          3                 Okay, that's all for now. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Council Member

          5  Fisher.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 I just wanted to dispel on the record

          9  a red herring that I think has been raised about

         10  this legislation, and it has got some unfortunate

         11  notoriety, and I think that the record ought to be

         12  clear about that, and I wonder if you could address

         13  this issue.

         14                 There has been some concern that the

         15  HIV-related portion of this in some fashion

         16  stigmatizes people or raises the perception that one

         17  of these special officers, that the fear that a

         18  special officer might become infected with the HIV

         19  virus simply by performing their ordinary functions,

         20  and as I read the legislation, that is not the case,

         21  and no one is saying that, and that the legislation

         22  actually requires that the presumption with respect

         23  to HIV only occurs where the employee may have been

         24  exposed to a bodily fluid of a person with whom they

         25  come into contact during the course of their
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          2  official duties.

          3                 I was wondering if my reading of the

          4  statute is correct and if you could elaborate on

          5  that, because I don't want people to be under a

          6  misapprehension as to what this legislation is

          7  saying about people with HIV.

          8                 MS. STRICKER: Yes. I am glad you

          9  brought that up.

         10                 One would have to have documentation

         11  that there was an incident on the job. It would have

         12  to have been where you come back -- I asked another

         13  union who has this benefit about how they handle it

         14  and I was told by Mike Carta (phonetic) from the

         15  Fire Department, that when someone would say a

         16  firefighter came back from a job run, as he put it,

         17  you would then document it in your log, so later if

         18  something, if you did contract AIDS and you were HIV

         19  positive, then you would go back to the

         20  documentation. One would have to have documentation,

         21  and that would be how we would proceed.

         22                 There is very little to go on now

         23  because very few things have come before the

         24  retirement system, but it is very minimal as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And if I could
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          2  just note, I appreciate the Council Member raising

          3  this question, the other point to make here is that

          4  under the current situation, the flip side is true,

          5  that it is almost impossible for somebody in this

          6  sort of a situation to prove, with the presumption

          7  against them, that they did contract any of these

          8  types of diseases in a specific incident. Because

          9  you would have to go through their entire lives and

         10  prove everywhere else that they didn't contract it

         11  there. So, it is a very difficult -- I am very

         12  sensitive to the question that you raised, and I

         13  know that they have been raised by others, but I

         14  think the point here is that there does need to be

         15  documentation of a specific incident, and then you

         16  have an employee of the City of New York who has an

         17  illness, and to give them the presumption when they

         18  can prove that there was a specific incident, that

         19  the presumption that they can receive some money in

         20  order to deal with that illness is, to me, a

         21  responsible thing to do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Mr. Chairman,

         23  you know, it also is a clear distinction between an

         24  airborne infectious disease like tuberculosis where

         25  more casual contact can lead to an infection,
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          2  somebody coughs on you and certainly the number of

          3  encounters that the special officers have with

          4  people could, there is at least a significant

          5  possibility. With respect to the HIV virus, where

          6  some type of exchange of bodily fluids has been

          7  identified by the health officials as being

          8  critical, that is what this legislation requires.

          9  Anybody that says that there is an attempt to

         10  stigmatize the HIV population with this legislation

         11  simply hasn't read it and simply hasn't taken into

         12  account the reality for the employees that we are

         13  talking about today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Any other

         15  questions from my colleagues?

         16                 No, okay, thank you all for your

         17  testimony.

         18                 We are waiting for one more colleague

         19  to join us from downstairs and then we will be able

         20  to have a quorum and vote.

         21                 It is exciting, every hearing, and I

         22  thank all of my colleagues who are here who are

         23  always punctual and on time in order to ensure that

         24  we move swiftly with the business of this Committee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The
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          2  witnesses are excused.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Are we in

          5  recess, Mr. Chairman?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: No. The cameras

          7  are rolling, what have we got to say? Victor is

          8  here. We need Council Member Oddo from next door,

          9  and Council Member Pinkett is walking in so we can

         10  call the roll.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Miller.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Pinkett.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: DiBrienza.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fisher.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Aye on all.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you. We are

         22  going to leave the roll open for at least one

         23  Council Member who are on their way, but other than

         24  that, the hearing is adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 11:12 a.m.)
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